## OKLAHOMA QUILTERS' STATE ORGANIZATION BYLAWS (revised 03-27-21)

#### Article I - NAME

The name of the organization shall be the Oklahoma Quilters' State Organization

#### Article II - PURPOSE

The purpose of this organization shall be to stimulate an interest in quilts, to promote and advance the art of quiltmaking, to conduct educational programs and services in the design techniques and preservation of quilts and quiltmaking.

#### Article III - NON-PROFIT

This organization shall be non-profit and no part of its assets shall be used to benefit any individual member, but shall be used exclusively for the purpose of the organization.

#### Article IV - MEMBERSHIP

- Section 1. Any person interested in the history, preservation, and/or the development of the art of quilting, regardless of race, creed, sex, or national origin shall be eligible for general membership with full voting privileges.
- Section 2. Honorary Memberships, with no voting privileges, may be awarded by approval of the Executive Board.
- Section 3. General members and sustaining members shall pay annual dues determined by the Executive Board.
- Section 4. Annual dues shall be paid by Jan. 1 of each year. Members who have not paid by Feb. 1 will be dropped from membership.

### Article V - MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

- Section 1. Bi-annual meetings shall be held in the spring and fall of every year. On odd years a slate of officers consisting of President, Secretary, SE director, NW director shall be elected for two year terms. Membership chairman, Publicity and vendors chairman, Newsletter chairman, Ways and Means chairman, will be appointed by President for two year terms.

  On even years a slate of officers consisting of Vice-President, Treasurer, SW director, NE director shall be elected to two year terms.
- Section 2. Special meetings may be called by the President with approval of the Executive Board.
- Section 3. All members present shall constiture a quorum for the transaction of business in any membership meeting of the organization.

#### Article VI - EXECUTIVE BOARD

- Section 1. The officers shall consist of: 1) President, 2) Vice-President, 3) Secretary, 4) Treasurer, 5) four Directors. These officers shall constitute the Executive Board and shall be voting members of the Executive Board. Expenditures not exceeding \$2000 can be authorized by a majority vote of the Executive Board. Retreat programs shall be approved by the Executive Board. If necessary, an email vote of Board Members can be taken to reach a majority decision on authorized business.
- Section 2. Each officer shall be elected for a term of two (2) years. An individual may not hold two successive terms in the same office. A candidate for President must

have previously served on the Board for a two year period within the last six years.

Section 3. The duties of the officers shall be as follows:

**President:** Shall preside over all general, Special and Executive board meetings and shall in conjunction with the Vice-President appoint committees necessary to the welfare of the organization and serve as ex-officio member of all committees and serve as retreat chairman for one retreat per year, or appoint a retreat chairman.

**Vice-President:** Shall assist the President and in the absence, or request of the President, shall perform the duties of the president and be in charge of Educational Outreach and serve as chairman of the Program committee and serve as retreat chairman of one retreat per year or appoint a retreat chairman.

**Secretary:** Shall keep an accurate record of all meetings and handle correspondence.

**Treasurer:** Shall collect and take charge of all dues and funds made available to the organization. Shall pay all bills incurred by the organization and shall keep a written account of all organizational transactions. All bills must be approved for payment by a board member. The treasurer's books shall be audited in the house at the end of the calendar year by a committee of the treasurer and at least one other member.

**Directors:** Shall attend all Executive Board meetings and serve as advisors and assume other duties requested by the board. The Northern Directors shall act as hostess for the featured speaker of the Spring Retreat. The Southern Directors shall act as hostesses for the featured speaker of the Fall Retreat. Hostess duties include providing the featured speaker with local transportation and assist the featured speaker as needed. To achieve geographic representation, the Board of Directors will be elected from each of the four quadrants of the state with I-40 and I-35 being the dividing lines. The two Directors elected during the odd years will be from the Northwest and Southeast quadrants of the state. The two Directors elected during the even years will be from the Southwest and Northeast quadrants.

- Section 4. Two-thirds of the members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business in Executive Board meetings of thos organization.
- Section 5. Nominations and Elections: To Achieve geographic representation of the Board, and OQSO Nominating Committee of five (5) will be appointed by the President in January. The Committee will consist of two (2) executive board members and three (3) from the general Membership. Slate of candidates will be presented to the Board at their May Board meeting and published in the Fall Newsletter. Elections will be held at the Fall Retreat. Only the names of those persons who have signified their consent to serve if elected shall be accepted for nominations to an office.
- Section 6. The newly elected officers shall assume their duties Jan. 1 following their election.
- Section 7. Vacancies: In the event a vacancy occurs in the office of President, the Vice-President shall assume the duties of that office for the remainder of that term. A vacancy occuring in any other office shall be filled by Presidential appointment with the Executive Board approval.

Section 8. Gasoline and turnpike fees incurred by Board members attending regular or special board meetings shall be reimbursed for those meetings at a rate set by the board.

### **Aritcle VII - COMMITTEES**

- Section 1. Standing Committees shall consist of the following: (1) Spring Retreat, (2) Fall Retreat, (3) Newsletter, (4) Membership, (5) Web Master, (6) Publicity & Vendors, (7) Ways & Means.
- Section 2. Other committees may be appointed for stated periods of time to complete special purposes or projects.

# **Article VIII - AMENDMENTS**

- Section 1. The Bylaws mayt be amended at any regularly scheduled meeting by a two-thirds vote of the members present. The membership shall be notified of the proposed change thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the vote is scheduled.
- Section 2. These Bylaws shall be reviewed every two years by a committee appointed by the President.

### **Aritcle IX - PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES**

The Parliamentary authority in all matters not covered by these Bylaws shall be the <u>Robert's</u> Rules of Order, newly revised, Latest edition.

### **Article X - DISSOLUTION CLAUSE**

In the event the Organization is terminated the assets shall be used to purchase quilts for museums and historical societies, and/or given to charity.

OQSO BYLAWS (revised 3-27-2021)